PhotoCasterTM 2

User Manual

Copyright © 1998 Media Lab Inc.

Table of Contents

OVERVIEW	5
What Does PhotoCaster Do?	5
What's New in Version 2?	5
What is PhotoCaster 2 LE?	5
Operating Systems Supported	5
Mac OS Windows 95, 98 / NT	5 5
Installation	5
USING PHOTOCASTER	6
The PhotoCaster File Selection Dialog Box	6
MacOS Users Note: If you want to import a Photoshop file created under Microso will need to ensure that the filename ends with ".psd". For example: "WINPSFIL	ft Windows, you PSD"6
Layer Import Options	7
Flatten	7
Separate	7 7
Color Import Options	7
32-Bit	8
24-Bit	
Remap to current palette / Remap to current depth	8
Super Palette	8
Settings Control	8
Save Settings	8
Factory Settings	8
Advanced Options	9
Import To Score	9
Keep RegPoint	9
Separate Alphas	9
White Reduction	
Import Hidden Layers	
Merge Linked Layers	

LAYER SELECTION11
Multiple Selection Options
Create Single Cast Member 12
Create Multiple Cast Members 12
TIPS AND TECHNIQUES
Link Layers Effectively
Name Layers Effectively
Use Hidden Layers to Import Multiple Button States Simultaneously
Eliminate Intermediate Files
Estimating Needed Memory
Reducing Needed Memory
Change the Way You Author
FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS 14
What is the difference between PhotoCaster 2 I E and PhotoCaster 2?
Limported my Photoshon file, which had many layers, but only one layer came in What happened?
Not all my layers imported, what happened?
I received an "out of memory" message while using PhotoCaster what should I do?
How do Limport layers as 16 bit castmembers?
I'm selecting only one layer for import, but PhotoCaster seems to be reading and rendering all the layers
before it gets to the one L selected Why?
What other file formats will PhotoCaster import?
What other file long stuff surrounding my cast member?
What is this jaggy stuff suffounding my cast memory and the second secon
Whete can I get Alphawama
What are the red lines?
Have I moved my registered copy of PhotoCester to this other mechine and I'm getting blues lines and
an Unregistered message. What gives?
I've registered PhotoCaster but it keeps "unregistering" itself each time I use it. I have to keep
registering it every time I import a file
Can I give PhotoCaster to a friend?
Why do some transparent areas of my layers import with "blotches" that don't seem to exist in the
original Photoshop document?
KNOWN BUGS, LIWITATIONS, AND CAVEATS
Remapping to the Director 5 Windows palette
Unlinked external cast files (Director 5 only)
RGB Mode images only
Normal' Layer Blend Mode only
Live Effects Layers & Adjustment Layers in Photoshop
HOW TO REGISTER PHOTOCASTER

PURCHASING		18
Purchasing On-line		
Ordering by Phone		
Ordering by E-Mail		
Ordering by Fax		
TECHNICAL SUPPORT		18
WHERE TO FIND PHOTO	CASTER	18
Media Lab Web Page	http://www.medialab.com	
Media Lab FTP Site	ftp://ftp.medialab.com/pub/	
CONTACTING MEDIA LA	B, INC	19
LEGAL STUFF		19
Copyright Information		
Trademarks		19
License Agreement		20

Overview

What Does PhotoCaster Do?

PhotoCaster is an Xtra for Director 5 and later that imports Photoshop files directly into the Director cast. Each of your Photoshop layers is brought in as its own cast member. PhotoCaster preserves the registration and anti-aliasing of each layer, making the transfer of your Photoshop files into Director as painless as possible. It can even automatically place these new castmembers as sprites on the stage - exactly where they appeared in the original document! It will save you hours of development.

PhotoCaster gives you full control over how the Photoshop file is imported, letting you control the color depth and palette mapping on import (it can even create a "super palette" from your Photoshop file), preserve the Photoshop anti-aliasing and transparency, and a host of other controls.

PhotoCaster will forever change the way you work with graphics in Director!

What's New in Version 2?

Version 2 of PhotoCaster is significantly enhanced. It contains:

- * Support for Director 7, including alpha channels
- * Layer previews in the layer selection dialog
- * Ability to import directly into the score
- * Separation of alpha channels from layers

What is PhotoCaster 2 LE?

PhotoCaster 2 LE, is the 'lite edition' of PhotoCaster 2 that comes free with Director 7. PhotoCaster 2 LE can import one layer at a time without defacing, even if you aren't a registered user. All of the features of PhotoCaster 2 are available in PhotoCaster 2 LE, with the specific exceptions of super palette creation and simultaneous multiple layer import. For these features we encourage you to register PhotoCaster 2. You can order online through our web page at http://www.medialab.com, or call 1-800-282-5361.

Operating Systems Supported

Mac OS

PhotoCaster for Mac OS supports system versions 7.0 and higher, and supports both the PowerPC and 68K platforms.

Windows 95, 98 / NT

PhotoCaster for Win 32 runs in conjunction with Director 5 or later on the Windows 95, 98 or Windows NT platforms.

Installation

To install PhotoCaster, place the PhotoCaster file in the "Xtras" folder located in the same folder as the Director application. Then launch Director. To confirm that PhotoCaster has

loaded, go to the Insert Menu. You should see the entry Media Lab Media, which gives you access to a popup menu where you can choose PhotoCaster.

Using PhotoCaster

To access PhotoCaster, choose the Insert menu and select the Media Lab Media submenu. PhotoCaster will appear on the submenu, together with any other Media Lab Xtras installed. Choosing PhotoCaster brings up the main PhotoCaster dialog box.

The PhotoCaster File Selection Dialog Box

The PhotoCaster dialog box will display any Photoshop 3.0 or later files in a selected folder. It will not display files saved from Photoshop in PICT, TIFF or any other file format except for Photoshop's native file format. Simply locate your Photoshop file, click "Open", and stand back! PhotoCaster may take a few seconds to completely import your Photoshop file, but it will inform you of its progress as it goes.

MacOS Users Note: If you want to import a Photoshop file created under Microsoft Windows, you will need to ensure that the filename ends with ".psd". For example: "WINPSFIL.PSD"



Layer Import Options



These options govern whether you are importing the Photoshop file as a single cast member or as many. Used wisely, you'll never need to save anything but your actual Photoshop file, saving time and disk space, and eliminating file management headaches. The default setting for Layer Import Options is Separate.

Flatten

When Flatten is checked, all layers in the file will be flattened and imported as a single cast member. This option allows you to directly import a multi-layer Photoshop file into Director without the extra step of flattening from Photoshop and saving a separate PICT or BMP file.

Separate

When Separate is checked, each layer in the Photoshop file will be imported as a separate cast member. Each cast member takes its name from the corresponding layer in the Photoshop file. The lowest layer in the Photoshop file, typically the Background layer, will become the first cast member imported, and so on to the highest layer. Upon import, all the newly imported cast members will be selected.

Select...

Checking this box will allow you to choose specific layers for import rather than every layer in the document. You will be allowed to choose specific layers after clicking the "Open" button. (See the "Layer Select Dialog" section below.)

Color Import Options



This group of options allows you to control the color mapping of the cast members created by PhotoCaster. The default setting for Color Import Options is Remap to Current Palette.

32-Bit

This option is only supported under Director 7. It creates a bitmap cast member with 24 bits of color information and an additional 8-bits of alpha channel information. The 'Use Embedded Alpha' cast member option is automatically activated when using this option.

24-Bit

Checking this option will preserve the colors exactly as they appear in the Photoshop file (since Photoshop files are always in 24-bit color). This option is effective independent of the color depth setting of your monitor at import time.

Remap to current palette / Remap to current depth

This option will change dynamically according to the bit depth of your system. If your system is running in 8-bit or 4-bit color, the dialog box displays Remap to Current Palette. If your system is in a "true color" mode (16-bit or 24-bit), this option will display Remap to Current Depth.

Choosing Remap to Current Palette (available when your system is in 8-bit or 4-bit mode) will cause PhotoCaster to reassign the colors in the imported file to the closest values in the color palette currently selected in Director.

Choosing Remap to Current Depth (available when your system is in a true color mode) will cause PhotoCaster to reassign the colors in the imported files to the closest values in the 16-bit or 24-bit color space.

Super Palette

When this option is chosen, PhotoCaster will create a new, custom 8-bit palette that best represents all the colors in the file (i.e. a "super palette" of the layers). PhotoCaster gives equal weight to each pixel of each layer to calculate the colors in the custom palette. PhotoCaster will create a custom palette cast member, and map each imported cast member to it. You may specify the number of colors that will be used to create the palette. THIS OPTION IS ONLY AVAILABLE TO REGISTERED USERS.

Settings Control

Save Settings

Clicking the Save Settings button will save the current settings and will restore them into the PhotoCaster dialog every time it is called in the future.

Factory Settings

Click this button to restore the settings to the recommended factory defaults.

Advanced Options

"Advanced	
🗹 Import To Score	🗹 White Reduction
🗹 Keep RegPoint	🗹 Import Hidden Layers
🔲 Separate Alphas	🗌 Merge Linked Layers
<u>.</u>	

Import To Score

With this option selected PhotoCaster will add a new frame to your movie and place all of the newly created castmembers on stage in position for you! This option is independent of the Keep RegPoint option and will allow you to have all of your registration points centered within the castmembers without having to position them on stage manually. The new frame will be created at the current location of the playback head. The sprite will be placed in layer order, and will start at the lowest channel currently selected, or channel one if no channel is selected. The default setting for this option is On.

Keep RegPoint

No more having to create – and then delete – big rectangle outlines to keep everything registered! Checking this option will preserve the relative registration of all objects in all layers of the Photoshop file upon import. After importing a multi-layer file with Keep RegPoint checked, all cast members created can be dragged to the stage or score together and they will all align exactly as they were in the original Photoshop file. The registration point is the exact center of the frame of the Photoshop document. If this option is not checked, the registration point of each cast member will be set to the exact center of the object itself. This option is very useful for maintaining the alignment of cast member variations for character animation. The default setting for this option is On.

Separate Alphas

(Director 7 only) This option will create grayscale castmembers corresponding to each imported layer's alpha channel next to the newly created cast member in the cast. This is mainly useful for supporting Director 7's version of the mask ink-effect. The default setting for this option is Off. The 'Import To Score' option will automatically handle the mask ink effect if this option is enabled, so it's recommended that if you are using the Separate Alphas option that you also use the Import to Score option.

White Reduction

Photoshop supports both white pixels and transparent pixels, and they are not the same. Unfortunately, Director does not make this same distinction. Normally, when importing graphics containing both white and transparent areas in the interior of the graphic, the transparent pixels would come in as pure white, along with the truly white pixels. In this case, neither the Background Transparent nor the Matte ink effect produces the desired result of preserving *both* transparent and white pixels in the interior of the graphic.

PhotoCaster once again comes to the rescue – with the White Reduction option on, the important distinction between transparent and white is preserved. If White Reduction is

checked, any pure white pixels in the imported layer will be changed to an off-white just different enough from pure white that Director's Background Transparent ink effect will not interpret it as white, thus maintaining the opacity of your white pixels. The transparent pixels in the Photoshop file will be mapped to pure white and thus will become transparent when Background Transparent is applied to the cast member. The default setting for this option is On.

Import Hidden Layers

Normally, any hidden layers in your Photoshop file will be ignored by PhotoCaster upon import. However, if you do wish to import them, check this option. (See the Tips and Techniques section for an example of how using this option facilitates the creation of different button states.) The default setting for this option is Off.

Merge Linked Layers

Photoshop layers may be linked by using the Link function in the Layers palette. Clicking on the link column (in the Photoshop Layers palette) of any layer or layers will connect that layer or layers to the currently selected layer, so that if one of the linked layers is moved using the Move tool, the other(s) will move along with it. If Merge Linked Layers is checked when importing a multi-layer file, any set of layers designated as linked together will be merged into a single cast member upon import, rather than imported separately. The default setting for this option is On.

Layer Selection

If you have checked the "Select" check box in PhotoCaster's Layer Options (see "Layer Options" above) then when you click the "Open" button you will be presented with the following dialog:

PhotoCaster 2 Layer Selection		
Colorado Rockies Title	Preview:	
Banner		
Game in progress	Unioredia Hockies	
League Standings		
Coaches	Colorado Rockies	
Players	Title	
Announcers		
Farm Teams 🔹		
Multiple Selections		
Create Multiple Cast Members Merge Into Single Layer		
Color		
 32 Bit (24 + Alpha) 24 Bit Current Depth Super Palette 256 Colors 		
"Advanced		
☑ Import To Score ☑ White Reduction		
Keep RegPoint Separate Alpha Cancel		

This dialog allows you to choose individual layers to import. To select a layer, simply click on it. Select one layer or use the standard system modifier keys to select a number of layers. NOTE: If PhotoCaster LE users select more than one layer, the layers will be defaced with diagonal blue lines. Purchasing the full version of PhotoCaster will allow non-defaced import of any number of layers.

Multiple Selection Options

"Multiple Selections......

Create Multiple Cast Members Merge Into Single Layer

Create Single Cast Member

This option causes all of the selected layers to be flattened into a single cast member.

Create Multiple Cast Members

This option causes each selected layer to be imported as its own cast member.

Other Options

The other options are identical to the corresponding options in the PhotoCaster main dialog.

Tips and Techniques

Link Layers Effectively

Sometimes people are overwhelmed by the number of cast members a single Photoshop file can create when imported with PhotoCaster. Remember that judicious use of layer linking can let you have the best of both worlds: you can keep layers separate for easy editing in Photoshop and link them to create only the separate cast members you need in Director. This conserves sprite channels and simplifies cast file management.

Name Layers Effectively

Because PhotoCaster preserves layer names, you can start thinking about your Lingo programming for interactive elements while you are still in Photoshop. One common technique is to base button scripts on extensions to the cast member names. For example "start.u" might be the up state for the button and "start.d" might be the cast name for its down state. If you know this in advance you can name the layers in such a way that the right graphics become attached to the right scripts at the moment you import them! If you decide to change the button graphics in Photoshop, just keep the layer names the same, reimport, and voilá! no reprogramming necessary.

Use Hidden Layers to Import Multiple Button States Simultaneously

Frequently multimedia designers use Photoshop layers to design and preview their different button states. Turning one state's layer on and another state's layer off simulates what will happen in the final product. Because these different button states will never appear at the same time, they should each be anti-aliased to the elements behind them but not to each other. Simply hide them all, or all but one, and then import them with PhotoCaster using the Import Hidden Layers. Then all of your button states will be properly anti-aliased to the background, be already registered to each other, and look great!

Eliminate Intermediate Files

This one seems obvious, but old habits are hard to break. Now that you can use PhotoCaster to import Photoshop format files, don't bother to save flattened copies solely for the purpose of importing into Director anymore. This will save both disk space and version-control headaches.

Estimating Needed Memory

Importing a large Photoshop document can be rather memory intensive. PhotoCaster needs a large scratch space to pre-render for the purposes of anti-aliasing and other alpha channel compositing. There are two methods for estimating how much RAM will be needed:

1. When a Photoshop document is open in Photoshop, in the lower left corner of the document frame there is a pop-up menu that displays 'Document Sizes' or 'Scratch Sizes'. Using the 'Document Sizes' choice, PhotoCaster typically needs free RAM equal to the sum of the two numbers displayed there to completely import a document, assuming all layers in the document are being imported.

2, Each layer takes up *height X width X 4* bytes to import. When importing, you can calculate the amount of RAM needed for each layer in this fashion. To calculate additional overhead, add to that sum the bytes needed for an extra layer that has the dimensions of the entire document.

Reducing Needed Memory

Try some of these techniques if you are running short of memory when importing:

1. Allocate more memory to Director, and turn on the 'Use System Memory' option (on the Mac) in Director's preferences dialog (File-Preferences-General).

2. Try importing with the new 'Select' checkbox. Then select only a few layers at a time, reducing the amount of memory PhotoCaster needs at any one time.

3. Occasionally we have had people call who have made a 2000 X 2000 pixel document, but have populated it with only small layers, leaving lots of unused empty space. PhotoCaster needs a scratch space as big as the document, so memory could be radically conserved if the document was cropped down to the rectangle enclosing the needed layers eliminating the expanses of unused space.

Change the Way You Author

These tips have been included to start you thinking about the new power that PhotoCaster puts in your hands as an author. They are just the tip of the iceberg. Now that the transition from your graphics editor to your authoring environment is an organic and easy one you no longer have to put off importing graphic elements until they are absolutely finished because it takes so much tedious labor. Bring them in as they develop, then later delete them and reimport them into the same cast member slots and with the same layer names, and none of your work in scripts or the score will have to be redone! Create template Photoshop documents that will be associated with particular cast files. There are many more ideas that we haven't thought of. Watch our Web site for more techniques, or invent your own.

Frequently Asked Questions

What is the difference between PhotoCaster 2 LE and PhotoCaster 2?

PhotoCaster 2 LE, is the 'lite edition' of PhotoCaster 2 that comes free with Director 7. PhotoCaster 2 LE can import one layer at a time without defacing, even if you aren't a registered user. All of the features of PhotoCaster 2 are available in PhotoCaster 2 LE, with the specific exceptions of super palette creation and simultaneous multiple layer import. For these features we encourage you to register PhotoCaster 2. You can order online through our web page at http://www.medialab.com, or call 1-800-282-5361.

I imported my Photoshop file, which had many layers, but only one layer came in! What happened?!?

In Photoshop it's all too easy to inadvertently click on the eyeball icon of an unselected, hidden layer in the Layers palette. When this is done, the layer will become selected and visible, and all other layers will be simultaneously hidden. If you don't realize this and you save your file in this condition, and then import it into Director via PhotoCaster with the Import Hidden Layers option turned off, only the single visible layer will be imported. To check this, go back to your Photoshop file and be sure all layers you wish to import are visible.

Not all my layers imported, what happened?

1. Are the missing layers hidden in the original Photoshop file? If so, either change that setting in Photoshop, or turn on the 'Import Hidden Layers' check box options in the 'Advanced' PhotoCaster settings.

2. Are the missing layers linked to other layers in the original Photoshop file? If so they were combined with the other linked layers to form just one cast file. Either change the links in Photoshop, or turn off the 'Merge Linked Layers' check box option in the 'Advanced' PhotoCaster settings.

I received an "out-of-memory" message while using PhotoCaster – what should I do? Try some of the following:

- 1. Increase the amount of memory allocated to Director.
- 2. Turn on 'Use System Memory' in Director's Preference (File->Preferences->General). Applies to Mac only.
- 3. Use the Layer Select Dialog to import fewer layers at a time.

Consult the Tips and Techniques for more memory discussions.

How do I import layers as 16 bit castmembers?

Set your monitor to 16 bit (thousands of colors), and import using the 'Current Depth' radio button option in the 'Colors' PhotoCaster settings.

I'm selecting only one layer for import, but PhotoCaster seems to be reading and rendering all the layers before it gets to the one I selected. Why?

To calculate the anti-aliasing for a layer, PhotoCaster needs to render all the layers beneath it. If you want to avoid this, you can use Director 7's feature of dynamic alpha compositing instead. Select '32 Bit Color' as your color depth choice, or use the 'Separate

Alphas' option to split the alpha channel out. Both options preclude the necessity of rendering every single layer.

What other file formats will PhotoCaster import?

While PhotoCaster currently only supports Photoshop 3.0 and later files, other software packages can save in this format. Painter 4.0, for example, can save a file in Photoshop 3.0 format and its "floaters" will be translated into Photoshop layers upon import.

What is this jaggy stuff surrounding my cast member?

The jaggy fringe which may appear around some cast members is the anti-aliasing rendered into the cast member. You will notice that the cast member looks perfect when layered in the same location that it appeared in the Photoshop file, but may look 'jaggy' when over other layers. If this jaggy fringe is a problem (it isn't always) here are some considerations:

- 1. Avoid wide feathering. The more feathering there is in a layer, the more background it will have to have rendered into itself, and thus the more jaggy fringe it will have. If you simply must have wide feathering, then you simply must have AlphaMania.
- 2. If you are using Director 7, use the '32 Bit Color' option then your castmembers will automatically use the embedded alpha channel and you won't need pre-calculated fringe, and you won't have anti-aliasing problems. Or, use the 'Separate Alphas' checkbox, and use your castmembers with the Mask ink effect (again, Director 7 only).
- 3. Use AlphaMania. Rather than using Director's flat bitmap castmembers use AlphaMania. AlphaMania is a custom cast type that supports dynamic anti-aliasing and other alpha channel compositing effects. It can use PhotoCaster to grab individual Photoshop layers. It is way cool, and much easier to use than regular bitmap castmembers.

Where can I get AlphaMania?

The same place you got PhotoCaster - from Media Lab! Check out <u>http://www.medialab.com</u>, or see the section on contacting Media Lab, below.

What are the blue lines?

You are using an unregistered version of PhotoCaster. Once you purchase and register PhotoCaster, it will stop importing with blue lines. Director 7 users can use PhotoCaster to import one layer at a time and they won't get any lines at all.

What are the red lines?

If you are getting thin red lines, you must be creating AlphaMania castmembers using an unregistered version of AlphaMania. Once you purchase and register AlphaMania, it will cease importing with red lines.

Hey, I moved my registered copy of PhotoCaster to this other machine and I'm getting blues lines and an Unregistered message. What gives?

When you register PhotoCaster it locks itself to the serial # of the copy of Director you are running it under. Running it with a different copy of Director reverts it to demo mode. You

can always re-register it if you have to move machines, re-install Director, etc. but it must be running with the same Director serial # that it was originally registered for. Simply reenter your unlock code.

I've registered PhotoCaster but it keeps "unregistering" itself each time I use it. I have to keep registering it every time I import a file.

You probably have (or had) on your system an old version of PhotoCaster that had this bug. First, make sure you have at least version 1.2.2 or the most current version of PhotoCaster installed. Next, delete your PhotoCaster preferences files. On the Mac they are located in your System/Preferences file. On Windows they are in your Windows folder (or WIN/NT folder). Then restart Director.

Can I give PhotoCaster to a friend?

Yes, please do. Just don't give them your unlock code.

Why do some transparent areas of my layers import with "blotches" that don't seem to exist in the original Photoshop document?

It is possible to create invisible "residue" as a by-product of certain processes in Photoshop, for example: using the eraser to delete part of a layer while the eraser is not set to be fully opaque, use of the Paintbrush tool set to an opacity less than 5%, or failing to delete all of a previous selection that was created using very diffuse feathering, among others. Since most monitors will not display the difference between full transparency and color opacity of less than 5%, you will not be able to see this residue on the screen, but it exists in the file nevertheless.

As mentioned above, Photoshop uses a secret "alpha channel" to track the transparency of all pixels in the layer. PhotoCaster interprets any pixel in this alpha channel –which includes these residual almost-transparent pixels as well as pixels legitimately requiring anti-aliasing – as needing to be anti-aliased to the colors in the layer beneath them. Therefore PhotoCaster dutifully "anti-aliases" all of them by altering them based on the colors in the layers beneath them, creating odd blotches in your cast member where this almost-transparent residue had been.

You can eliminate this problem by selecting the correct outline of the graphic in the Photoshop layer you want, inverting the selection, deleting the contents of the selection, and reimporting. To avoid this problem in the first place, keep very aware of the opacity of the tools you are using in Photoshop and use the selection/inversion/deletion process on any layer you have doubts about prior to importing it into Director.

Known Bugs, Limitations, and Caveats

Remapping to the Director 5 Windows palette.

Under the Mac OS, PhotoCaster will not correctly map colors to the Director 5 Windows palette. There are two workarounds to this:

1. Use the Director 4 Windows palette. This palette is identical except for the last 6 PINs, which are lighter.

2. Dupe the Director 5 Windows palette and reverse the order off all the colors. Import using that palette, and then remap the castmembers using 'Transform Bitmap' to the standard Director 5 Windows palette.

This is due to a bug in Director 5 and 6. Macromedia is aware of the problem.

Unlinked external cast files (Director 5 only).

In Director 5, PhotoCaster cannot import into external cast files that have not been linked to the current movie.

RGB Mode images only

PhotoCaster can import RGB Mode images only. It does not support CMYK, index, grayscale, or other modes. It also only supports 24 bit color images, 48 bit images are not supported.

'Normal' Layer Blend Mode only

At this time, PhotoCaster only supports the 'Normal' layer blending mode compositing operation. In the future it may support additional layer blending modes.

Live Effects Layers & Adjustment Layers in Photoshop

PhotoCaster does not support live effects layers or adjustment layers in Photoshop. These layers must be merged to the layers they affect before importing with PhotoCaster.

How to Register PhotoCaster

PhotoCaster is distributed as an unlockable demo, which can be unlocked with a code number which you receive at time of purchase. The demo version of PhotoCaster defaces the imported graphics with blue lines. See Where To Find PhotoCaster below for common locations to find up to date versions. Download the demo to try it out and then call in to order.

To purchase the produce and deactivate the defacing function, you will first need to determine your product ID. To do this:

1. Install PhotoCaster into Director and launch Director.

2. Go to the Insert menu and choose Media Lab Media, then choose PhotoCaster. Click the "About" button.

In the About box for PhotoCaster you will find the 7-digit PhotoCaster product ID. With that number handy, simply phone us (*1-800-282-5361*) to place your order for PhotoCaster and we'll give you your product unlocking code. Or you can order via fax or email by filling out the order form that comes with the PhotoCaster downloadable version, being sure to include the Product ID number. Enter that unlocking code into the "unlock" field in the About box and you're done! Keep that code safe somewhere in case you have to re-install PhotoCaster or Director for any reason.

IMPORTANT: PhotoCaster locks itself to the copy of Director in which it is installed. Moving it to a different copy of Director with a different serial number will cause it to

revert to "demo" mode, reactivating the defacing function. So make sure you are getting your product ID from the copy of Director you expect to be using PhotoCaster with.

Purchasing

Call *1-800-282-5361* to purchase PhotoCaster using your Visa or MasterCard, at which time you will be given an unlock code. Alternatively, you may order on-line, by email or fax and receive the code number via electronic mail. If you are ordering PhotoCaster without having already downloaded and installed a demo version, we encourage you to have the last 10 digits of your Director 5 serial number ready when you call. This is not required, but will mean you won't have to call back for an unlock code once you receive the product.

Purchasing On-line

Media Lab has installed a new secure on-line purchasing system. By simply filling out a web page form you can quickly and easily purchase PhotoCaster or AlphaMania. Go to <u>www.medialab.com</u> and follow the link to the on-line ordering section.

Ordering by Phone

In the U.S: 800.282.5361

International: +1.303.499.5411

Orders can be taken Monday through Friday, 9 AM to 5 PM Mountain Standard Time.

Ordering by E-Mail

xtra-sales@medialab.com

There is an order form (ORDER.TXT) provided with the electronic download. Fill in all the information it requests, including your Product ID (see above), and e-mail back to xtrasales@medialab.com

Ordering by Fax

+1.303.497.9454

There is an order form (ORDER.TXT) provided with the electronic download. Fill in all the information, including your Product ID (see above), and fax it back to us.

Technical Support

To receive technical support for PhotoCaster, send electronic mail to xtrahelp@medialab.com. No telephone technical support is available for PhotoCaster.

Where to Find PhotoCaster

Media Lab Web Page http://www.medialab.com

The Media Lab web page always has the most current updates as well as new software demos and releases. As different language versions become available they will be posted

here, as well as any interim updates to PhotoCaster itself. From here you can download the full electronic version of PhotoCaster to demo and try out before purchasing.

Media Lab FTP Siteftp://ftp.medialab.com/pub/This site is also available through our web page, but if you don't have web access, you canfind the most up to date Xtras here.

Contacting Media Lab, Inc.

Media Lab, Inc. 31 South 80th Street Boulder, CO 80303

Phone: 800.282.5361 to purchase PhotoCaster +1.303.499.5411 all other calls

Fax +1.303.497.9454

Website: http://www.medialab.com

Distribution Inquiries:	sbruce@medialab.com
Press and Advertising:	sbruce@medialab.com

email:	xtra-help@medialab.com	Technical support.
	xtra-sales@medialab.com	Place orders for PhotoCaster
	xtra-bugs@medialab.com	Report any bugs or request new features.

announcements:: photocaster-announce@medialab.com

Subscribe to the photocaster-announce mailing list to receive notices about PhotoCaster releases, bug fixes, and announcements of other Media Lab Xtras. This is a read-only, low-volume list (one or two messages a month, at most).

To subscribe to photocaster-announce, send a message that looks like the following to listserv@medialab.com.

To: listserv@medialab.com

Subject: doesn't matter, our list server ignores subjects

SUBSCRIBE photocaster-announce < Your Name Here>

Legal Stuff

Copyright Information

PhotoCaster ©1996 As Is Software, Inc. PhotoCaster is distributed by Media Lab, Inc.. Any distribution related inquiries should be emailed to sbruce@medialab.com.

Trademarks

PhotoCaster is a trademark of Media, Lab, Inc. Adobe Photoshop is a trademark of Adobe Systems, Inc. Director is a registered trademark of Macromedia, Inc. Mac OS is a registered trademark of Apple Computer, Inc., and Windows 95 is a trademark of Microsoft Corporation.

PhotoCaster User's Manual

License Agreement

Media Lab, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as Company), a Colorado based Corporation, provides the PhotoCaster software (hereinafter referred to as Program) contained on the medium in this package and licenses its use. You assume full responsibility for the selection of the Program to achieve your intended results and for the installation, use and results obtained from the Program.

License

This license agreement applies to the unlocked PhotoCaster software only. You are allowed to distribute the demo PhotoCaster software freely. You are prohibited, however, from giving your unlock code to any other user or from using the unlocked Program on more than one computer simultaneously. The unlocked Program is licensed to be used with a single copy of Macromedia Director.

A. In consideration of the payment of a license fee, you are granted a personal, nontransferable and nonexclusive license to use the Program under the terms stated in the Agreement. You own the diskette or other physical media on which the Program is provided under the terms of this Agreement, but all title and ownership of the Program and enclosed related documentation (hereinafter referred to as Documentation), and all other rights not expressly granted to you under this Agreement, remain with the Company.

B. The Program may be used by you only on a single computer. Therefore, you must treat this software just like a book. With the exception of Item D below, just like a book means that this software may be used by any number of people and may be freely moved from one computer location to another, so long as there is no possibility of it being used at one location while the same copy is at the same time being used at another location. Just as the same copy of a book cannot be read by two different people in two different places at the same time, neither can the same copy of software be used by two different people in two different places at the same time. Contact Media Lab, Inc. for details.

C. You and your employees and agents are required to protect the confidentiality of the Program. You may not distribute or otherwise make the Program or Documentation available to any third party.

D. You may not copy or reproduce the Program or Documentation for any purpose except to make one (1) archival copy of the Program, in machine readable or printed form for back up purposes only in support of your use of the Program on a single computer. You must reproduce and include the Company copyright notice on the backup copy of the Program.

E. Any portion of the Program merged into or used in conjunction with another program will continue to be the property of the Company and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. You must reproduce and include Company's copyright notice on any portion merged in or used in conjunction with another program.

F. You may not sublease, assign or otherwise transfer the Program or this license to any other person without the prior written consent of Company.

G. You acknowledge that you are receiving on a LIMITED LICENSE TO USE the Program and Documentation and that the Company retains title to the Program and Documentation. You acknowledge that Company has a valuable proprietary interest in the Program and Documentation. You may not use, copy, modify or transfer the Program or Documentation or any copy, modification or merged portion in whole or in part except as expressly provided for in this Agreement. If you transfer possession of any copy modification or merged portion of the Program or Documentation to another party, your license is automatically terminated.

Term

This license granted to you is effective until terminated. You may terminate it at any time by returning the

Program and Documentation to Company together with all copies, modifications and merged portions in any form. The license will also terminate upon conditions set forth elsewhere in the Agreement, or if you fail to comply with any term or condition of this Agreement. You agree upon such termination to return the Program and Documentation to Company together with all copies, modifications and merged portion in any form. Upon termination, Company can also enforce any rights provided by law.

The provision of this Agreement which protects the proprietary rights of Company will continue in force after termination. Termination of this license either voluntary or involuntary does not entitle you to a refund of your purchase cost except as provided elsewhere in this License Agreement.

Limited Warranty

Company warrants, as the sole warranty, that the medium on which the Program Is furnished will be free from defects in materials and workmanship under normal use and conditions for a period of ninety (90) days from the date of delivery to you as evidenced by a copy of your receipt. No distributor, dealer or any other entity or person is authorized to expand or alter either this warranty or this Agreement. Any such representations will not bind the Company. Company does not warrant that the functions contained in the Program will meet your requirements or that the operation of the Program will be uninterrupted or error-free.

Except as stated above in this section, the Program and Documentation are provided as is without warranty of any kind either expressed or implied, including but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. You assume entire risk as it applies to the quality and performance of the Program and Documentation. Should the Program prove defective you and not Company, authorized Company Distributor or dealer, assume the entire cost of all necessary servicing repair or correction. This warranty gives you specific legal rights and you may also have other rights which vary from state to state. Some states do not allow the exclusion of implied warranties, so the above exclusion may not apply to you.

Limitation of Remedies

Company's entire liability and remedy will be:

A. The replacement of any medium not meeting Company's Limited Warranty explained above and which is returned to Company or an authorized Company distributor or dealer with a copy or your receipt; or

B. If Company is unable to deliver a replacement medium which conforms to the warranty provided under this Agreement, you may terminate this Agreement by returning the Program and Documentation to Company, authorized Company Distributor, or dealer from whom you obtained the Program and your license fee will be refunded.

Product Returns

If you must ship the Program and Documentation to an authorized Company Distributor, dealer or to Company, you must prepay shipping and either insure the Program and Documentation or assume all risk of loss or damage in transit. To replace a defective medium during the ninety (90) day warranty period, if you are returning the medium to Company, please send us your name and address, the defective medium and a copy of your receipt at the address provided below. In no event will Company be liable to you for any damages direct, indirect, incidental or consequential, including damages for any lost profits, lost savings or other incidental or consequential damages arising out of the use or inability to use such Program and Documentation, even if Company has been advised of the possibility of such damages or for any claim by any other party. Some states do not allow the limitation or exclusion of liability for incidental or consequential damages not exclusion may not apply to you. In no event will Company liability for damages to you or any other person ever exceed the amount of the license fee paid by you to use the Program regardless of the form of the claim.

US Government Restricted Rights

The Program and Documentation are provided with restricted rights. Use, duplication or disclosure by the US Government is subject to restrictions as set forth in subdivision (b) (3) (ii) of the Rights in Technical Data.

General

This Agreement is governed by the laws of the state of Colorado (except federal law governs copyrights and register trademark(s)). If any provision of this Agreement is deemed invalid by any court having jurisdiction, that particular provision will be deemed deleted and will not affect the validity of any other provision of this Agreement. Should you have any questions concerning this Agreement, you may contact Media Lab, Inc. at the address below.

Media Lab, Inc., <mark>31 S. 80th St., Boulder, CO 80303 , Phone: (303) 499-5411, Fax: (303) 497-9454 http://www.medialab.com</mark>